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8. Con. Res. 27

Thursday, January 17, 1984€.

Congress of the United States,

Joint Committee on the Investigation

of Pearl Harbor Attack,
Washington, D. C.

The Joint Coﬁmittee met, pursuant to adjournment, at
10:00 a.m., in the Caucus Room (room 318), Senate Office
Building, Sanutor Alben W, Barkley (chalrman) presiding.

Present: Senators Barkley (chairman), Georze, Lucas;

Ferguscn and Brewster.

Representatives Cooper (vice chairman); Clark, iurphy,

@Gearhart and Keefe.
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Also present: Seth W. Richardson, General Counselj

Samuel H. Kaufman, Assoclate General Counsel, and John E.

Masten, of counsel, for the Joint commlittee.
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PROCEEDINGS

The Vioce Chalrman: The committee wlll please be in

] order. Does ocounsel have anything at this time for tlne record

before resuming the examination?

Mr. Richardson: Mr. Chalrman, we have for introiuction
into the redord a large number of documents which we think
essentlial in order to completely cover the fleld, which have
been preparei; ocoples have been, I think, distributed or sre
available for distribution by Mr. Hannaford of my staff and
as he will be leaving Washington on Saturday I would like to
have abrut an hour of the commlittee's time, elther today or
tomorrow, to enable him to offer those doocuments in evidence
and if the Chairman will zive the matter attention and let
me know some time during the day when that may be done, he 1s
prepared to go ahead with it «t that time. It 18 a matter
that does not have to be decided now but some time during the

day. Most of these exhibits, if not all of them, are answers

- %o requests that have been made by different members of the

TQ committee of us.

The Vice Chairman: 'Well, do the members of the commit-

tee have any views on this point? If we will have to take an

- hour to do this, it seems to me we might just as well declde

now when to take 1t.

Senator Ferguson: I understand that this 18 to be done

- in open hearing and that he will offer them while we are here
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| Mr. Richardson: 'Well, I noticed the other day that a

| group of exhibltis were offered and extended on the record by

the reporter without the committee being in actual personal

| sesslon. I do not know whether that would be permissible

practlice wlth these. It 1s purely a formal introduction into
the record of these exhibits.

The Vice Chalrman: Well, that oocourred iate one after-
noon.,

Mr. Richardson: Thst 18 right.

The Vice Chairman: We had run over the usual meeting
time already and then it developed that certain exhibits wersa
ready to be presented to the committee and the committee, as
| I recall, by unanimous consent agreed that counegel might sub-
| mit thoee for the record, but personally I would think 1t would

be better if these ocould be presented when the committee is

e e

in gesslon so that we may have a description of them and know
what they are.
Mr. Rlchardson: Well, if, for instance, Just by way of

suggestilon; the committee could conolude to pause, for in.

——

stance, at 3:30 this afternoon Mr. Hannaford would be ready
to complete the presentation of those exhibits st the close

of this afternoon‘s hearing.

The Vice Chalrman: 1Ie there objeotion to that suggestion

on the part of counsel?




(No response,)
The Vice Chairman: The chalr hears none. It will be so
3 ordered,
Mr. Richardson: All right.
The Vice chairnan: Does counsel have anything further

before resuming the examination?

l Mr. Richardson: None, Mr. Chairman.

The Wice Chairman: Admiral Kimmel, do you have anything
| you want to present before counsel resumee his examination?
Admiral XKimmel: No.

The Vice Chairman: Counsel will now proceed.

TESTIMONY OF REAR ADMIRAL HUSBAND E., KIMMEL

(resumed)

Mr. Rlochardson: Admiral, referring to your compllation
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| on retirement matters, which 1¢ noted in the record as exhibit

l
121, I note in the first paragraph the statement that a mes-

Bage came to you that, "Admiral Jaoobs'had been directed hy

the Acting Secretary of the Navy to inform me that General

| Short had submitted a request for retirement. "

I note then in the fourth parasgraph of the letter:

"Subsequently I learned from Admiral Jaocobs that the
Offlolal directing him to inform me that General Short

had submitted a request for retirement was not the Aot-

ing Secretary, but the Secretary of the Navy, Mr. Knox."
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

What do you desire the record to show as to the signi-
ficance of the reference to the Acting Secretary and the re-
ference to the Secretary?

Admiral Kimmel: Technically the term "Acting Secretary”

as referring to Mr. Knox was perhaps correct. I wvas curious

to knov the individual vho had ordered Admiral Jacobs to

send this message to Admiral (Greenslade for me and I inquired
of him vho it was and he told me Mr. Enox. I wanted to know

wvho the individual wvas.
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- Witness Kimmell Questions by: Mr. Richardson
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Mr. Richardson: Is there not a common understanding
dealing with departments of the nature of the Navy Depart-
ment, that the Acting Secretary, so-called, is not usually
the Secretary himself?
k, Admiral Kimmel: Yes, thaé'ia correct.

Mr. Richardson: And that was the reason for your
further inquiry?

Admiral Kimmel: When I made the inquiry, I did not
know who had given the order. I wanted to know. I found
that Mr. Knox had given 1t.

Mr. Richardson: Now, Admiral, referring to your state-
ment which you read the other day, and referring to page
35, I want to ask you a question or two,

I asked you yesterday whether you had not concluded,
as the Commander of the Pacific Fleet to subordinate the
guestion of Hawaiian defense to the proposition of training.

I find in your statement this parggraph:

"1 was not expected to discontinue training for all-
out security measures, concentrated on the defense of
the Haweiian Islands, every time an alarming dispatch was
received from Washington predicting Japanese aggression in

Far East. Indeed, had I done 30, the tralining program

would have been curtailed so drastically that the Fleet

' could not have been prepared for war."
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Now turning to page 36, I find this paregraph:

"In 1941 we of the Pacific Fleet had a plethora of

} premonitions, of generalized warnings and forebodings that
Japan might embark on aggressive action in the Far East

at any one of the variously predicted dates. After receipt
of such warnings, we were expected to continue with renewved
Intensity and zeal our own training program and preparations
for war, rather than to go on an all-out local alept against
attack,"

Now, Admiral, you are not complaining, are you, be-

cause you received from Washington, what you call a "plethorsa
of premonitions, generalized warnings and rorebodinga“?

Admiral Kimmel: I was merely stating facts.

Mr. Richardson: Well, the transmission to you as
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Commander of the Fleet of just such pPremonitions, warnings

and forebodings as were sent you were precisely what should

| have been sent you from Washington for your information?
Admiral Kimmel: I wes glad to have all of these warn-
; ings and forebodings, but the continued submission of these
| did not mean tc me at any time that I wau'to go out on all-
| out security measures and sbandon the training program.
What I was trying to emphasize was that in my corres-
pondence with the Navy Department, and in particular in my

letter of May 26th, I set forth my principal problem, and
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

my principal problem was to determine when to stop the
training program and to go to all-out security measures,
and that was what I wanted more than anytbing else, and
in a very definite form,

Mr. Richardson: And with the information that you had
at your disposal in Hawaiil, preceding the attack and the
inferences which you drew from it, ther; came your decision
to proceed with the training program rather than with an
all-out alert for defense?

Admiral Kiﬁmel: No, not entirely. I took the steps
which I have outlined in great detail, wvhich I thought it
was possible and advisable to take, which I thought the
situation demanded.

Mr. Richardson: Precisely, but the steps which you
did take, and which you thought the situation demanded
put you on a training basis, rather than on an all-out
alert defense basis, did they not?

Admiral Kimmel: No, sir. The steps that I took were
all that I considered the situation justified at the time,
and the Fleet was on the alert at that time.

Mr. Richardson: Now, a word, Admiral, with reference to

| the use of torpedoes, serisl torpedoes by the Japanese in

the attack.

You have referred to the letters of February and June
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| Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

as informative to you as to the probability of such an
attack on your ships in Pearl Harbor with the depth of
water there present,

Now, all the Japanese did to have the aerial torpedo
to make the attack was to take some old Whitehead torpedoces
built back in 1931, amd put some fins on them, so located
on the torpedo that when it struck the water, the fins
would bring it up to the surface and avoid the question
of shallow water, wouldn'it 1it?

Admiral Kimmel: That was a device which the Japanese
used. It was a device which all the brains of our own Navy
Department, who had been seeking such a solution, had been
unable to arrive at. Any solution of any problem appears
simple when you get the answer, and the simpler the better
it 1s.

Mr. Richardson: The fins were made of wood, weren't
they?

Admiral Kimmel: I do not know. I think so, I never
saw one of them,

Mr. Richardson: And you feel that the use of wood
fins on a torpedo in the water, with those fins so slanted
as to bring the torpedo up to the surface as soon as possible
vas a new development in the art of warfare comparable to

the use of »adar?
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! Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

i Admiral Kimmel: Oh, no, I do not gothat far, but
;: this vas a device which the Japanese discovered, and which
! our own people had been unable to discover. I think it
cannot be compared in importance with the discovery of

radar.

Mr. Richardson: Admiral, on October 14, 1941, you

issued to your fleet what is known and referred to as

Pacific Fleet ConfidentialLLettep No. 2CL-41, Reviaedf
Admiral Kimmel: I did. That was not the first time
that was issued. I think that has been stressed here be-
fore,
Mr. Richardson: I understand that, but ﬁhere.was one

issued on October 149

Admiral Kimmel: That is correct.
Mr. Richardson: And that is included in the compila-
tion known as Exhibit 449
Admiral Kimmel: I presume so. I do not know what is
in Exhibit 4%,
Mr. Richardson: Let me read you the second paragraph
of that letter.
"The security of the Fleet operating and based in
the Hawailan area 1is predicated at present on two assumptions:

" "(a) That no responsible foreign power will provoke

wvar under present existing conditions, by attack on
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Mr. Richardson

Witness Kimmel Questions by:

Fleet or Base, but that irresponsible and misguided

nationals of such powers may attempt:

"(1) sabotage on ships based in Pearl Harbor from
amall craft;

"(2) to block the entrance to Pearl Harbor by sinking
an obstruction in the channal;'

"(3) to lay magnetic or other mines in the approaches

to Pearl Harbor."
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Witness Kimmel Questions py: Mr. Richardson

Now:

"(b) That a declaration of war may be preceded by:

"(1) a separate attack on ships in Pearl Harbor,

"(2) a surprise submarine attack on ships in
operating area,

"(3) a combination of these two."

Now in sending that letter to your Fleet on QOctober 14,
you sent that to them as indicating to them what your under-
etanding was as to the basis for the sevpurity of the Fleet
in Pearl Harbor and Hawalian waters at that'timeé

Admiral Kimmel: I think you will find substantially
the same wording in every issue of this 2CL41, the aecﬁrity
crder.

| Mr. Richardson: And that continued appearance of that
information in all of those confidential letters either before
or after the one of (October 14 was because there was present
in your mind at that time that the matters mentioned in that
paragraph threatened the security of the Fleet?

Admiral Kimmel: We were covering, as I have statod sevqral ;;
times, all the possibilities that we could foresee, and ve
wvere laying down a procedure, insofar as we could see, to
meet each one of these conditions that arose. When you

make plans you make plans to Iroresee everything possible,

pot oaly e probable things.
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- Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Witness Kimmel

L]

Mr. Richardson: Admiral, would a copy of these confidential f:

Fleet letters to which we have been referring come to the -

 mttestZon of the Chief of Naval Operations in due course?

Admiral Kimmel: Oh, yes, he is furnished with copies of
all these letters. You will note at the end of the letter the
distribution 1s 5CM-41, and a great many letters and indications
there, and if necessary, you can find from the then existing
mailing l1list whether this was received in the offilce of the
chief of Naval Operations. I can tell you now that there 1s \
rot the slightest doubt but that he did receive 1it. |

Mr. Richardson: You were also transmitting these confi-
Aemb (a1l Mest letters to the Army in Hawaili?

Admiral Ximmel: 1 am quite sure they were furnished
copies of this. I ocannot swear to that now, but I am as cervain
as I can be of anything without investigating it.

Mr. Richardson: Now, Admiral, calling your attentlion to
your testimony in the Roberts hearing, on page 366, I want to 5
read to you a short excerpt from that. Commencing with
question 376.

Mr. Matsen: ‘That is the Navy Court.

Mr. Richardson: Let me correct that. The record that '

1 am reading from is Admiral Kimmel's testimony before the
Huval Court, commencing with Question 376:

s ._'-' -f-" L
o |

"Question: Did you at &ny time as Commender in Chier,

' U. S. Fleet, and as Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet,
. question the advisability of maintaining the Pacific Fleet
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

in Pearl Harbor?

"Answer: When I took command of the Fleet I knew of

 the disagreement between Admiral Richardson, my predecessor,

and the authorities in washington on the advisability or
basing the Fleet at Pearl Harbor. He told me himself. I
agreed with Admiral Richardson in general, but when I took
command of the Fleet we had been for sometime without much
gunnery, due to the fact that no adequate training target
facilities wvere present in the Hawaiilan area, and when 1
took command we had just about succeeded in completing the

sransfer of that material from the Coast. I dia not meake

. any protest, any formal protest against maintaining the

Fleet at Pearl Harbor at any time. I did, in conversation

@ with the Chief of Naval Operations in June of 1941, poirt

- e — -

out to him the vulnerability of Pearl Harbor as a Fleet base.
The various elements that entered into it are well-known.

I repeated substantially the same thing to the President
wvhen I had an interview with him, and the substantial point
of the conversation was that so rar as an alr attack on Pearl
Harbor was concerned, the only real answer to an air attack
wvas not to nave the Fleet in port if and when the air attack
came, that it took from two to four hours to sortie, and

¢nce an air attack started the attack would be completed

- bafore we could chenge in any degree the disposition of the
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Fleet. I pointed out the chances of blocking the entrance,
the single entrance that we had, and the danger from the oil
storage as it was at that time, and I do not recall anything
other than that at the pro_lent. time, although there probably
wvas. These vere factors which were well-known to the President
and Chief of Naval Oporationa prior to any statement by me.

"1 accepted the conditions at Pearl Harbor. That was
one of the reasons why repeatedly in correspondence 1 requested
to be kept informed of developments.” |

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

Mr. Richardson: "Question: 1In other words, does the
Court understand that you concurred with your predecessor
in that the Fleet should not be kept at Pearl Harbor?

"Ansver: In general, yes.

"Question: And you so expressed your opinion in con-
versations with the President and Chief of Naval Operations?

"Answer: I did not definitely recommend that the
Fleet be withdrawn at the time of my conversation, because
I wanted to get some training in. I accepted the situation
but pointed out the dangers that existed so long as the
Fleet was in Pearl Harbor.

"Question: Did you at any time make any recommendations

as to the withdrawal of the battleships and carriers or

battleshins alone from Pearl Harhor?
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Witness XKimmell ' Questions by: Mr. Richardson

"ansver: Not that I recall.

I juat wanted to ask you, Admiral, whether today you

regard that as an accurate statement of the situation as thus
discussed and reported?

Admiral Kimmel: I think so.

Mr. Richardson: Admiral, I want to call your attention
to Exhibit 37, page 1, a dispatch from OPN to "All Naval
Districts". You are familiar with that?

Aodmival Fiwenel: I am.

Mr. Richardson: I1et me read 1it:

“PERIONWEL OF YOUR NAVAL INTELLIGENCE SERVICE SHOULD
BE ADVISED THAT BECAUSE OF THE FACT THAT FROM PAST EXPERIENCE
SHOWS THE AXIS POWERS OFTEN BEGIN ACT1IVITIES IN A PARTICULAR
FIELD ON SATURDAYS AND SUNDAYS OR ON NATIONAL HOLIDAYS OF
THE COUNTRY CONCERNED, THEY SHOULD TAKE STEPS ON SUCH DAYS
T0 SEE THAT PROPER WATCHES AND PRECAUTIONS ARE IN EFFECT.”

Do you agree with the statement thus made, that
3ntuidays and Sundays and holidays were days of more probablo
attack than other days of the week by Axis powers?

Admiral Kimmel: I vant to say first that I never saw
this dispatch until after the attack on Pearl Harbor. In
fact, I never saw it until I came to Washington. The

dispatch is addressed to the Commandant of the Naval Districts.

It was a«ver sent to me. I have no recollection of ever having
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" Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

been warned by any agency that sa.turda.ﬁ and Sundays were
a time of particular danger fror a surprise a.tftaok.
However, I was familiar with, in general, with the
activities of the Axis powers; but I didn't then consider
that Saturday and Sunday were particularly & time when the
Axis would choose for such a surprise attack, and I am not

convinced even today that such a time was any more than a

coincidence.

Mr. Richardson: Was it discussed at any time between
1ou Erd the members of your staff?

Admiral Kimmel: Not to my recollection. I have no
recollection of ever having discussed that with members of
my staff, or anybody else.

Mr. Richardson: Let me call your attention to Exhibit 10,
which purports to be a memorandum for the President, dated
November 5, 1941, from Stark and Marshall, which memorandum
came to you by letter on November 14, 1941, as shown in the
record as Exliibit 106. You ere generally familiar with what
I &o talking about?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

Mr. Richardson; Let me read an excerpt from page 2:

"At the present time the United States Fleet in the
Pacific is inferior to the Japanese Fleet and cannot under-

take an unlimited strategic offensive in the Western Pacific.
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

In order to be able to do so, it would have to be strengthened

- &y withdraving all naval vessels wanh

There is a notation at the bottom of the page that there

wag ‘asented after the word "all" the word "practically”, so

thet it should read:

"s#x# practically a&ll naval vessels from the Atlantic
exceprt those assigned to local defense forces. An unlimited
offensive by the Pacific Fleet would require tremendous merchant
tonnage, which could only be withdrawn from services now
considered essential. The result of withdrawals from the

Atlantic of naval and merchant strength might well cause the

| United Kingdcem to lose the battle of the Atlantic in the

ncar future.

"The only existing plans ##"

Eer- tliere 18 & notation at the foot of the page "two
~rec2ding words struck out, and handwritten word ‘current?®
substituted", so that it would read:

"Phe eurrant plans for war against Japan in the Far
Zesi. are to conduct defensive vwar, in cooperation with the
British and Dutch, for the derense. of the Philippines and
the British and Dutch East Indies.”

You received that communication?

Admiral Kimmel: I did.

Mr. Richardson: You agree with the statement of fact
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

therein contained?

Admiral Kimmel: With the statement of fact? I don't
understand you, &ir. |

Mr. Richardson: I will put it differently. Have you
sny somant to make upon that language as to whether you
agroe with it or not? Let me carry it through --

Adnmiral Kimmel: I don't quite understand the question.

Mr. Richardson: The statement is made that the U.3.

Fleet is inferior to the Japanese Fieet. Do you agree with

that?

Admiral Kimmel: 'That was correct.

Mr. Richardson: And that the U.S. Fleet cannot undertake
en nnlimived =travegic offensive in the Pacific. Do you
agree with that statement?

Adiiral Kimmel: That was correct.

Mr. Richardson: The statement is made that to enable
you to do so you vwould have to withdraw strength from the
Atiantic.

Agmiral Kimmel: That was correct.

Mr. Richardson: That such an offenslive bﬁ the Pacific
Fleet would require tremendous merchant tonnage. Do you
agree with that?

Admiral Kimmel: That was correct.

Mr. Richardson: That the result of such withdrawal might
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vell cause the United Kingdom to meet with disaster. Do

— e —————— A . W e e T S e -
- - -

you agree with that?

o ——

Admiral Kimmel: That was a matter of opinion. I think

it was perhaps accurate.

ﬁ
— ———— T —
- -

6 | #“». Richardson: And that the current plans for war against :
7 | Japan were to conduct a defensive war in cooperation with

" the British and Dutch for the def'ense of the Philippines and

0 the British and Dutch EFast Indies.

(1 I Admiral Kimmel: That was correct insofar as I knew it,

i | so far as any facts were available to me.
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr., Richardson

Mr. Richardson: Now, we discussed very briefly,
vesterday, Admiral, the question of the report to you
by Captain Layton of your staff, with respect to the
change in Japanese call signs on November lst.

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir.

Mr. Richardson: Do you recall Captain Layton stating
to you in connection with the coomunication Intelligence
Summary of December 1, 1941, that the change in the Japsanese

call signs "indicated a progressive step in preparing for

.active operations on a large scale"?

Admiral Kimmel: I don't recall that exact language,
but I have no doubt that language was used in the Summary
which was submitted to me,

Mr. Richardson: And do you recall that at the time
he submitted it to you with his communication Intelligence
Summary that you underlined the sentence I have quoted in
»ed pencil?

Admiral Kimmel: I can't recall vhether I underlined
that myself, or whether Captain Layton underlined it. It

vas a phrase that would and should have been called to my

| attention, and I have no doubt it was.

Mr. Richardson: And it was a practice when particular
wvords were called to your attention for you to underline

~hem?
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Witness Kimmel Questions by: Mr. Richardson

Admiral Kimmel: A practice for me to underline then?

Mr, Richardson: Yes.,
Admiral Kimmel: If something struck my mind as belng
of particular importance, I might underline it. I think
1t is equally possible that Captain Layton himself under-

lined it. I don't quite get the significance or importence
of whether I underlined it or whether Captain Layton unde=-
1ined it.

Mr. Richardson: Well, there wouldn't be, Admiral, any

particular distinction if the underlining was done wvhenyou

two were conferring about it, What I am more interested

in is what the significance was of underlining 1it,
Admiral Kimmel: Well, I would say that the significance
of underlining it was that that was proﬁably the most 1im-
portant part of that particular communication, and either
T underlined it to get the significance when I was rereading
it, or Caﬁtainibayton.underlined it before he brought it to
me, or he may have underlined it after I had completed my
conversation. That I can't say now to save ny life.
Mr. Richardson: Now, we discussed yesterday also
briefly what I clumsily referred to as the lost carrier
fleeot.
Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir.

Mr. Richaerdson: One of your etaff was Vice Admirel
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McMorris?

Admiral Kimmel: That is correct.

Mr. Richardson: He was a captain then?

Admiral Kimmel: He was a captain in charge of the
War Plans Section of my staff. He had several very able
afficers assisting him in that section.

Mr. Richardson: Have you read his testimony in the
Hewitt investigation? .

Admiral Kimmel: I don't now recall whether I have
read his testimony in the Hewitt investigation or not. I have
»ead a great deal of his testimony.

Mr., Richardson: Well, I want to call your attention
%0 this language:

"Taking into consideration the general situation and
gll other information at hand, we were extremely disturbed.”

Admiral Kimmel: That is corrsct, yes.

Mr. Richardson: You wald agree with that conclusion
on his part?

Admiral Kimmel: We were disturbed; certainly we were
disturbed, not only on November 27 and succeeding days, but
disturbed -- I was disturbed all the time I was in command
of the Pacific Fleet.

Mr. Richardson: Yes, but, Admiral, this discussion of
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you by Layton with respect to the lost fleet around the
1st of December, did it not?

Admiral Kimmel: I am unable to state that unless I
read'his testimony. If you say he was referring to that,
I presume he was.

Senator Lucas: Will counsel tell me what he is reading
rom? :

Admiral Kimmel: I have tried to the best of my
ability to set forth Just what I knew, and just what signi-
ficance I attached to these traffic analysis reports.

I have tried to 1ndioa£e that so far as I was con-
cerned there was no lost fleet. There were ships and types
of ships which we were unable to identify, and we had no
reason to suspect that there was a lost fleet contalining
the six carriers any more than we had reason to say there
was & lost fleet containing, we will say, 75 percent, or
80 percent of Japanese naval forces.

Mr. Richardson: If the fleet that we speak of as a
lost fleet was still in home waters in Japan, or in the
China Sea, it would not be as important to you as though
that fleet was in the neighborhood of Hawall, would 1t?

Admiral Kimmel: Certainly not.

Mr. Richardson: I rsad now from page 321 of the

Hewitt report, statement by Vice Admiral McMorris:
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"Mr. Sonnett. Well, I take it, Admiral you racall
no specific discussion of the lack of information con-
serning carrier divisions 1 and 2 of the Japanese fleet
on or about December lst, 1941, and prior to the attack?

"Wice Admiral McMorris: I do not so recall, but I
do recall that during this general period the information
as to the locations of Japanese fleet units was far from
as specific as desired., EBut I do not recall that lack of
information. Teking into consideration the general situa-
tion and all other information at hand, we were extremely
disturbed,"”

Admiral Kimmel: Extremely disturbed?

Mr., Richardson: Wepre you extremely dia-tm'bed at that
time about the whereabouts of the Japanese carriers?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes. I wanted to know where the

Japanese carriers were.

Mr. Richardson: Were you extremely disturbed about 1t?

Admiral Kimmel: Well, I von't say I was extremely
disturbed. Had I been extremely disturbed in it, I would
have -- might have deduced that they were headed for Hawaii.
Is that what you are trying to drive at? I was not dis-
turbed to that extent, and neither was Captain McMorris,
&8 shown by his testimony before numerous other boards.

I em unable to interpret Captain MclMorris® testimony
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as to exactly what he meant. I am quite sure that Captain

McMorris will be able to speak for himself, and I under-

stand he is on the list of witnesses to be called here.

Mr, Richardson: Now, Admiral, let me read you fur-
ther from page 363.

Admiral Kimmel: Does that answer your question?

Mr, Richardson: I think so, Let me read this to
you further from page 363 of the Hewitt report, ansvers
given by Vice Admiral Smith, who was also on your staff.

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

Mr. Richardson: Referring now to the whereabouts of
the lost carrier fleet, as I put it:

"Mr. Sonnett: Does -="

I guess I will read the preceding questian,

Senator Brewster: Give the page each time,

Mr. Richardson: I did. 363.

"Wice Admiral 3Smith: Now, I see nothing very alarming
in those dispatches up to Pearl Harbor. On one day the
traffic will be very light, radio traffic, and on the next
day it is very heavy, right up to the 6th of December. The
fact that you don't hear from the second fleet, he doesn't
orlnate any message, doesn't necessarily mean he is on the
vay to Pearl Harbor. Our own forces while at sea exerclses

meintein radio silence. We had a very large force, almost
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half of the Pacific Fleet in May 1941 proceeded to the
Atlantic, and no traffic was heard from them for a poriod
of some six weeks, so the absence of radio traffic from
the forces at sea doesn't indicate anything to me.

"Mr. Sonnett. Does it indicate that they are at sea,
Admiral?

"Wice Admiral Snith. It indicates the probability
that they are at sea.”

Do you agree with that conclusion?

Admiral Kimmel: Not entirely. They may have been at
sea. They may have been in port. The only thing we knew
was that we were receiving a great deal of traffic. We
knew a great deal of traffic was being exchanged, and we
were unable to identify it.

Now, Admiral Smith's testimony and Admiral McMorris?
testimony was given without benefit of redent examination
of the daily summaries which were submitted to me, and

which they themselves saw at the time, and the best amswer

2o their impressions and their testimony here is that during

‘ell of this period prior to December 7, never once did

gy of them suggest to me that the carriers might be on

the way to Pearl Harbor,
Mr. Richardson: Did you know, Admiral, anything about

at the time, a conference of destroyer commanders conducted
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by Admiral Bloch following the receipt of the wvarning mes-

.area.

. and to bomb all suspected submarines contacted.
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sage of November 277

Admiral Kimmel: I dén't recall whether I knew of
any such conference pribr to December Tth. It would have
ween & natural thing for him to do, and when he spoke of
nhis destroyer commanders, he spoke of those destroyers

sthich were assigned toO him for use in the defensive sea

It would have been & perfectly proper thing for him

#a do, particularly in view of my order to exerclse ex-

Mr. Richardson: If he, 1n his conference, warned
r1s destroyer commanders following the warning message of
November 27 that something might happen and they should
be on the alert that in your opinion was precisely vhat
1ne should have done?

Admiral Kimmel: That is correct, yes. I tried to
warn them myself, and I tried to warn them in positive
language.

Mr. Richardson: Do you recall, Admiral, that he
reported to you what he hed told his destroyer comnanders?

Admiral Kimmel: I don't recall that he told me any-

+hing ebout 1t. There was 1o reagon wvhy he should. I
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h9 :ulwouldumthathohaddomsmmohthing. I had a
|
. right to assume sO.

; ‘; Mp. Richardson: Did you ever, following the receipt

. \ of the warning message of November 27, ever advise the

E Chief of Navel Operations that you had decided not to

7 It' operate any long-distance reconnaissance, but intended to
« | ooncentrate on your training program?

Admiral Kimmel: The Chief of Naval Operations was in-

formed in correspondence the means avallable for long-dis-

¥

tance air reconnaissance in Pearl Harbor, that we were
unable to maintain a reconnaissance for mre than a short
'+ | time, that in order to have a reconnalssance, We had to
- know within narrow time limits, the time of attack, and

4e had no means in Hawail to make that reconnalssance over

|G

5 0 ‘NOLIONIMSYM TNYd 9 O

¢ || indefinite perlods.
17 Mp. Richardson: Now, you were in effect, through the

aisposition of your task forces, meintaining in effect,

such & reconnaissance in the west and southwest sectors

ATs E of Oahu, were you not?

i Admiral Kimmel: Yes, we were, and we did that incidental
-- not incidental, it was a factor which vas considered

' 4n this situation, and we took advantage of everything we

could to make a reconnaissance,

r l* Mr. Richardson: But you did not detall & single patrol
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-

plane to make any kind of reconnaissance in the entire
north and northwest sector from Oshu either on December
6 or December T?
I Admiral Kimmel: Yes, that is correct.

Mr. Richardson: Admiral, would 1t have been practicable
for you to have detailed either destroyers or submarines for
+he purpose of maintaining a distant patrol in any of those
sectors?

Admiral Kimmel: The Naval Court of Ingquiry went lnto
that question very thoroughly. To maintaln an effective re-
cannéiaaance by surface vessels Or by submarines -- the use
of surface vessels for such a purpose Wwas, to my mind,
highly inadvisablie. We had no unimportan® uﬁ.ts out there
vhich we could afford to sacrifice for that 1 1rpose. You
will find in the record that we tried to get 1 bunch of
vessels which might have been useful for sucl things. We
were never able to get them.

The only thing we had were surface vess: 1ls which, in
my mind, were far too valuable to put out on a wide arc
and had they been put out there, they would wave been des-
troyed in detail by the attacking force witk never a
chance. The submarines might have been use if I had had
submarines available to do it with. |

At the time of Pearl Harbor and immedi tely preceding
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it, I had a patrol of submarines off Wake and Midway. We

had not a sufficient number of submarines to maintain

more than patrol, I mean a sufficient number available

for operation at that time.,

In about the early days of November, or it may have

i; been the latter part of October, it was declded, with my -
approval and the approval of the Navy Department, to send .
o a large number of submarines to the West Coast ports in

order to have installed a distilling apparatus. We found

that the time the submarine could stay at sea was dependent -

Yd ¥ COdad¥Y"A

upon the amount of fresh water they had available, and by

| putting in an improved distilling plant, they were able to

'l":'hl!. g
[

. | 4ncrease the time by something like 50 to 75 percent.

15 it And they were balancing then the supply of water against

S Q "NOAIDNI®

ths supply of fuel oil and other things which enabled them
.- to remain at sea.

R For that reason a large part of the submarines which
were attached to the Pacific Fleet proper were in the Vest
Coast ports at that time,and I recall specifically that
Admiral Withers, who was examined before the Naval Court

. had told me he was having great difficulty in maintaining
the patrol of these four submarines off Midvay and Wake and
éi ths reliefs for them.

29 f You will also be interested to know that in the, oh,
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vithin two or three months preceding Pearl Harbor, we had
sent successive detachments of submarines to the Asiatic
Fleet where we believed they could be of more use because
they were closer to the Japanese homeland. Therefore we
had very few submarines available at this time.

Mr. Richardson: How many did you have?

Admiral Kimmel: My recollection of the figures is
that there were four, on patrol off Midway and we had
either four or five in Pearl Harbor being held there, who
had recently returned from Midway, and were having a rest
and recreation period and getting ready to go out and
relieve these fellows at Midway.

Mr. Richardson: The patrol of submarines at Midway
and the outlying islands was at your order?

Admiral Kimmel: That 1is correct.

Mr. Richardson: You removed them from the Hawaiian
area and sent them on to the Midway area?

Admiral Kimmel: That 1s correct.

Mr. Richardson: You could have brought them home any
time you wanted to?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir, any time I consldered 1t
desirable to do so, but I did not consider it desirable to
do so, and I think they were performing very useful serv-

ice off Midway and Wake.
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Mr. Richardson: Is it your position, Admiral, here
that you were instructed by the Navy Department to continue
your training programs?

Admiral Kimmel: I made no such statment. I made the
statement that the Navy Department knew throughout the year
that I was continuing the training program and that when
in their opinion, with all of the information they had
here -- I thought the least they could do was to give me
a definite time, either by supplying me with all of the
information, or by giving me orders.

Mr. Richardson: Well --

_ Admiral Kimmel: I repeated and I repeat again, that
vhat we needed was information or orders, and what I wanted
to determine above everything else was when to stop the
tra:l:ning program, and wvhen to go on all-out security measures.

Mr. Richardson: And did you ever sent a dispatch to
the Chief of Naval Operations asking that question ever?'

Admiral Kimmel: I gave it in language which I am un-
able to improve upon to this day in my letter of May 26
and I believe in terms which cannot be misunderstood by
any human being.

Mr. Richardson: Well, let's change our question.

Did you ever ask Naval Operations in Washington after

November 1, 1941, whether you should continue your tralning
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program, or whether you should go on an all-out defense
of Hawali?

Admiral Kimmel: No, I didn't ask them that gquestion;
but I would like to invite your attention to a statement
I made at page 35 of the paper which I read before the
comittee‘ the other day.

"Admiral Stark testified before the Naval Court of
Inquiry that he did not intend that the Pacific Fleet
should discontinue its training program upon receipt of
this dispatch, two weeks before the attack."

That is on November 24 -- was the dispatch referred to.

Mr. Richardson: But, Admiral you didn't know that
before the attack, did you?

Admiral Kimme}: Didn't know that Admirel Stark felt
that way?

Mr. Richardson: Yes.

Admiral Kimmel: I knew it in every way that I could
deduce it from the dispatches that I had received.

Mr. Richardson: Was 1t a serious question that you

- had to consider and decide, whether you would continue the

training program or concentrate on Hawallan defense?
Admiral Kimmel: It was a serious decision to mske to

stop all training and to go to all-out security measures.

I never conceded that the Pacific Fleet was placed in
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hl5 Hawvaili to defend the base at Hawaii. I thought the
Pacific Fleet was there, I st111 think the Pacific Fleet
wvas there to conduct offensive operations, and by offen-
sive operations to afford a measure of security for the
Fleet -- for the basg I mean.

Mr. Richardson: Don‘t you think 1t is unusual,
Admiral, if you had such & serious decision to make in
November, 1941, that you didn't ask the Chief of Naval

1

Operations in Washington, in an appropriate way, for his

I

up-to-date conclusions on this very important question?

Admiral Kimmel: From his dispatches and from his

*TiNIvd ¥V JUYMN

1etters to me I felt I would get nothing more than he had

already given me, and in his letter of November 25, which

came to me on December 3, you will see the language which

S & H"*.L'.Jl‘ﬂh;.'.‘i’.‘ﬂ

1t vas quoted there,
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Mr. Kichardson: Well now, Admilal, referring again to

the so-called war wvarning message of November 27, what aid

after Nevember 27 in response to that message?

Admiral Kimmel: I think I have set that forth in tne

statement there.

Mr. Richardson: 1In other words, the statement you have
made in your statement is your ansver to that question?

Admiral Kimmel: That 1s correct.

Mr. Richardson: You refer at one place in your statement
to your desire to see the actual decoded messages which were
being received in Washington.

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

Mr. Richardson: Io you take the position here that 1t
vas tho-dut:y of the Chief of Naval Operations to send to
commenders in the field the precise documents by way of informa- -
tion that come in to the office at wWashington or their com-
piled judgment of what those dispatches mean?
Admiral Kimmel: I felt that the Commender in Chief of
49 T, ©. ¥lret and the Commander in Chief of tne Faciric
Fleet, which positions I occupied at the time, were entitled
t& evary serap of information they had in Washington, and how
or in what form that information was supplied to me, or

suppiied to the Commander in Chief, I think 13 unimportant,
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it is whether or not the information was supplied.

| Mr. Richardson: Do you think, Admiral, that there should

" have been sent to you the specific dispatches themselves?

r. | Admiral Kimmel: I didn't care whether they were sent by

o | dispatches, by letter, by courler, or by any other means that

~d

they wanted to send them. I felt that in order to get -- I
will say this today that I feel that in order to get the

"

() zleaning out of dispatches, referring partioulaerly to Pearl

Farbor aud to the Pacific situation, it would have been very

1 much better to give me the text of the dispatch. Tnat I

12 | didn't & any time in this statement intend to insist upon.
;5 What I did intend to insist upon was that I was entitled to

. all the information, whether in summarized form, all the

15 | essential information which had to do with the Pacific

2 O 'NOLDHMInBYM "IfIvd ¥ GQUT W

10 I: Bitl]ﬁ.tion-
T Mr. Richardson: What did you understand, Admiral --
Y ] Admiral Kimmel: And I thought I was getting all that

1o iInformation.

Mr. Richardson:; What did you understand, Admiral, as

=)

.._.__.,_,.._,-._
B -~

1+ to the scope of the interception of messages that was beling
. <3 [ conducted by the Intelligence stationed at Hawail?

23 | Admiral Kimmel: I knew that the Intelligence stationea

A ’ ¢S Hovaii was detailed primarily and almost exclusively on

2 || wvhat ve have termed trarffic analysis, that all or their
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resources vere dovﬁted to that end. When they got & message,
auon 4 this Light message, as I think it has been referred
to, where they talked about burning the rlares, and lights
in the windows, and things of that kind, they undertook to
dasnds that more as & matter of interest and exercise, with
entirely inadequate facilitles for decoding it. They had
no facilities for decoding 1it.

Mr. Richardson: Then it was your understanding that
at no time were they in positian to intercept and decode
these messages that wvere referred to here as maglc?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir. Incidentally, I think, in
regard to this light message, I think you will find some
testimony before the Hewitt Board, Hewitt Board of Investi-
gation, that that 1ight message was in fact decoded and
translated in an understandable form by one o‘clock an
ragember 6, 1941, and that that was here in the Navy Depart-
ment at that time. That type mesSSage that these young
~ujiows out in Hawall were doing-thair best to break and
whign thoy wers unable Lo break until, I understand, they
' got some tips from the Japanese Consulato.

Mr. Richardson: What do you oonnider, Admiral, To have
' been the significance of the so-called Morri message?
Agmiral Kimmel: I don't know. I never heard a thing

about thet. Never knew any such messS&ge existed until after

& = -
o - 5
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tuw attack was aver. I recently seen in the newspapers, LT
vou want me to tell you what I saw in the newspapers --

Mr. Richardson: No, if you didn't see it before the
attuck 1 zm not interested in 1it. I

Admiral Kimmel: All right, sir.

Mr. Richardson: Now, on page 67 of your statement
you advanced the idea that if you vere conducting & partial
patrol confined to a single sector that would immadiately
vaacme known to Japan and completely neutralize the advantage
of such patrol in that sector.

Now, if I correctly interpret your position 1in that
ragare , “lhen 1t would necessarily follow, would it not,
Admiral, that this reconnaissance that wvas being conducted
i~ th« vest and southwest sector would make it pretiy certain
that no Japanese attack would come from that sector under
that reconnaissance, wouldn't it?

Admiral Kimmel: I think that the form of reconnaissance
+hat we conducted in the west and southwest sector from the
airplane carriers and from planes operating from Midway and
Johnston and from Wake, was much less liable to be known in
Japan than any search conducted by planes based an Oahu.

Mr. Richardson: Well, bthere would be no possible way,

vould there, except through Japanese espionage in Hawall,

of Japan knowing about & patrol in the north sestion?
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' .nd Johnston, the knowledge of that would have been much less
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Admiral Kimmel: Well, the Japanese esplonage in Hawall

Gcm.z.lc‘i have been able to determine about the north sector.

Wwhat I am talking about is that planes taking off from

1lable to get into Japanese hands than anything which origi-
nated on Oahu and, according to the northern sector, it would
have to come from Oahu.

Mr. Richardson: Well, now, 1 have just a question or
two, Admiral.

Admiral, isn't it fair to state that the information
sontained in the war warning message of November 27 was &a
fair compilation of the general, specific information which
und been given to you in the two or three preceding messages
1n late October and November? Isn’t it in effect a summarized
sompilation of the information you had in the messages which
immediately preceded 1t?

Admiral Kimmel: It is a summarized compilation, but
it was more definite and more restrictive than the prevlious
messages were.

Mr. Richardson: Now --

Admiral Kimmel: It indicated not an attack in any direction
mit an attack in one of, I think it was, rour specified

directions.




7108
Mr. Richardson

Vitness Kimmel Questions by:

Mr. Richardson: Did you ever in all of your experience

s Commander in Chief of the racific Fleet ever Bsee another

v Gispatch from the Chief of Naval Operatlons vhich was designated

' a war warning in words?

6 | Admiral Kimmel: My answver to that -- I have prepared

;| a 1ittle memorandum here because I thought something like

# | this might come up.
0 | on July 3, 1941 I received the dispatch from the Chief

. of Naval Operations in which 1t was stateda that the Japanese

2 Fleet was so deployed that it was capable of movement elther

north or south, that a definitive move by the Japanese may

. < .1 | pe expected during the period July 20-August l.

-
LT o el RY -

on July 25 I received another dispatch from the Chief

LA »f Naval Operations in which the Chief of Staff joined. Thils -
Lt i teld me of the economic sanctions that the United States was

sbout to impose and continue. The Chief of Naval uperations
| and the Chief of Staff do not anticipate hostile reaction
.y, 1y Japan through the use of military means, but you &are

furnished this information in order that you may take appro-

priate precautionary measures against possiple evantualities.
. : In the letters of the Chief of Naval Operations to me
thore appear the following which I detalled on page 33 of

. my statement and which I repeat:

} "what will happen in the Pacific is anyone's guess "
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(Memorandum of May 1%, 1941.)
An open rupture was described as a possibility on
@ill! Eh, -1941- |8

"Obviously, the situation in the Far East continues to

r —
L

Zsteriorate; this is one thing that is factual.”

(July 31, 1941)

"Also the seriousness of the Pacific situation which
sontinues to deteriorate."

(August 21, 1941)

"I have not given up hope of continuing peace in the

Pacific, but I wish the thread by which it continues to hang

- wer® no' so slender.,"

(August 28, 1941)
"I have held this letter up pending & talk with Mr. Hull

" who has asked me to hold it very secret. 1 may sum it up

by saying that conversations with the Japs have practically

reached an impasse."

(September 23, 1941)

My reaction, and the reaction of all of the people,
insofar as they commnicated their feelings to me, were that

this term "this is a war warning" added little, if anything,

} i

-

to the message of November 27. '"This is a war warning", merely,

)

~ "mhis is to be considered a war warning" merely characterized f

g
r

the information which it contained and the information which
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it contained was the thing that ve considered most. I had

never heard the term used in naval parlance before "This is

%o be gnusidered a war warning". I considered all the

messages -- not all -- but & great many of the messages that
T received during the years as war varnings, and the addition

of these five letters which are now pointed to &s & cure-all
for every deficiency that might have accrued to Washington
in this matter, did not have any such effect on me, ‘nor dida
it have any such effect on any of my associates in FPearl

Ezyhor.
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Mr. Riohard;on: Well, then, your answer to my question
as to whether yocu ev-r saw another message from the Chief of
Naval Operations stating that the message was a war warning
in those words, your answer would be "No"?

Admiral Kimmel: That 18 correct. I not only never saw
that before in any ocorrespondence with the Chief of Naval
Cper ations, I never saw 1t in all my naval experience.

Mr. Richardson: And did 1t ooccur to you, sinoce it wus
such an extraordinary term, that you might inquire from the
Chief of Naval Cperations what he meant by uaing 1t?

Admiral XKimmel: That 18 Just the trouble. I d4id not
consider 1t an extraordinary term,

'mru Richardson: Now, one further quesetian, Admiral.

In your statement in a number of cases you refer to in-
formation from Washington.

Admiral Kimmel: Yee, sir,

Mr. Richardson: Can you detall Just what you meant by
"W ashington" for us! Did you mean the Chlef of Naval Oper-
ations or the Secretary of the Navy or State or War or the
President or who?

Admlral Kimmel: So far as I wae concerned in my offi-
clal oapacity I referred to the Navy Department. I used the

term "Washington" to include by implication, if you will, the
fact that the War Department, in my humble epinlon, had just
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Mr. Richardson: Well, then, your answer to my question

(-

3 a8 to whether yocu ev-r saw another message from the Chief of

4 Naval Operatlions stating that the message was a war warning
3 in those words, your answer would be "No"?

8 Admiral Kimmel: That 18 correct. I not only never saw
7 that before in any correspondence with the Chief of Naval
Oper ations, I never saw 1t in all my naval experience.

9 Mr. Richuardson: And d4id 1t occur to you, since it wus
10 such an extraordinary term, that you might inquire from the
1 Chief of Naval Operations what he meant by uaing 1t?

12 Admiral Kimmel: That 18 Just the trouble. I 4id not

AT @ OIRaA

13 consider it an extraordinary term.

4 Mr. Riohardson: Now, one further questian, Admiral.

3 In your statement in a number of cases you refer to in-

N T MOTDMIMA AW

16 || formation from Washington.,

gy Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir,

19 Mr. Richardson: Can you detall Just what you meant by

19

l
! "W ashington" for us! Did you mean the Chlef of Naval Oper-
20 || ations or the Secretary of the Navy or State or War or the

21 President or who?

. 22 Admlral Kimmel: So far as I wae concerned in my offi-

23 clal ocapacity I referred to the Navy Department, I used the

24 | term "Washington" to include by lmpllication, if you will, the

fact that the War Department, in my humble opinion, had just

e5
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aé much responsibility for notifying General Short of aotivi-
tles that might affect Hawaii in any degree as the Navy De-
partment hdd in notifying me.

Mr. Richardson: Well, then;, in fact your reference to
Washington meant any of the high oommand at Washington who
were 1ln a position to give you information either through
Jour naval department or through the War Department?

Admiral Kimmel: I looked to the Navy Department for ny
infermation. I took all the information I could get either
from the Navy Department or from the War Department and I
consldered every bit of this information, and in that conneg-
tion I considered the information in General Short's mes3age
from Gener al Marshall and I noted on the 29th that the orders
that were given to General Short by General Marshall in Hawaiil
were also given in almost exactly the same terme to the West-
érn Defense Command, whioh indlcated that Gener al Marshall
must have considered the Western Defense Command in as much
danger of attack as he consldered Hawaii.

Mr. Richardson: Well, right along that line, Admiral,

& questlon ooours to me that I have overlooked. If the mes-
8age of November £7th or 1ts equivalent went %o all of our

naval commands on our West Coast, - Puget Sound, San P edro
and whatever others there are thers, should there have been,

in your opinion, any differant intefpretation nla~ed upon that
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dispatch by those prste than you were entitled to pla~ce on it

\w

3 | in Hawaii?

4 Admiral Kimmel: My recollection of that, the addressees

5 for that message --

N “I'm M‘ _d_ -ﬂﬂ

il . -

6 Mr, Rqohardson: I am referring to the message of the

7 27th. Who would thut message go to, Admirall

L
-

8 Admiral Klmmel: Thils message went from the Chief of Naval

0 Operations to aotion of Commander-in-Chief Aelatic and Com~

{

- . _ L‘L_._'__

10 || mander~-in-Chief Pacifioc Fleet. It went for information to

Il the Commander~in-Chlef Atlantic and to special Naval observ-

s - el el St

12 ers. That 41d not go to all the other Naval commands. Those

13 || were the ones that that message of November 27th was conf ined

14+ || to, and Admiral Hart in the Aslatic was faced with a conplder-

O MUTDHAIMERANW . JLA® & ApMar

ably different sltuation from the one I had in Hawail and that

16 || was meant to ocover both.

17 | The Vice Chairman: If counsel will permit, I think 1t

iA 1s shown that the parallel War Department message went to

i - - . 1 o -. > LR = - iy
- E M‘wj_'.—i-'-_.l_.f i e R e, - kS sl g e 2 P

1o | these commanders to whom you have referred.

el

Mr. Richardson: Th&t will be brought out,
<l

Admiral Kimmel: That is correct, sir, That 18 what I

22 || was referring to a moment &ago.

23 | Mr. Richardson: Now, one final question, Admiral.

s o

24 | Admlral Kimmel: The mes8age to which I referred a few
25 |l mlnutes azo was from the Chief of Naval Operations to Com-
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mander Pacifio Northern and Paoif 10 = to the two commandante
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|

—
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on the West Coast as I understand 1t here.

-

1 Mr. Richardson: Thut would inoclude Panama?

Admiral Kimmel: No., Paoific Northern Coagtal Frontier

&K

8 and Paoifioc Southern Coastal Frontier, naval coastal frontier.

7 That 18 where this message went to and it was for information

8 of CINCPAC and Commander Pacifio Naval Coastal Frontier,

0 Now, in the text of the message 1t Jays, "Army has sent
E 10 following to Commander Western Defense Command," and this was
I 11 the message which was sent to me for information.

g | Mr. Richardson: 1Is thers any 1indlcation that the mes-

| sage went to Fanama?

14 Admiral Kimmel: Yes, information Pacifio Naval Cpastal

V0 AOTOWIMBA'Y JUAT 8 (JHAw

'S |l Frontier -- Panama Naval Coastal Frontier, I guess that isg
16 [iwhat that 1e. They have got these abbreviations which I am

17 a llttle bit ruety on right now.

18 Mr. Richardson: Now, a final question, Admiral.
l

L1
i N T — . -

16 You will agree, will you not; with refersnce to this Pearl

|
!

20 jHarbor attack questlon that we have been dlscussing that if

|

21 I{the informetion which you had and those deductions which you

———

as a skllled naval commander should have made warned you of

23 the immediats danger of an attack at Pearl Herbor, that no

" f amount of negligemce at Washington should havs prevented you

€3 |lfrem offering all the defense You could?
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Admiral Kimmel: Certainly, if I had had anything which
indlcated to me the probabllity of an attack on Hawali then
there would not have been any trouble about what I did out
there in Hawail. The message whioch came to me, and partiocu-
larly thls message of November 27th, were carefully gone
over, not only by me but my a great many intelligent people
and they got the same meaning out of it that I daid. Now,

when a number of people of the intelligence of members of my

" 8taff and my principal task force ocommanders who saw these

messages and this partloular messsge, too, and had seen
everything else that I had gotten, 1including my correspond-
ence with Admiral Stark.'uhon.thoy did not get the meaning
out of 1t then there must have been something the matter with
the message and the people who originated the message.

Mr. Richardson: Well, over and above those messages and

' The meaning of those messages 1t 1s your contention, 18 it

not, Admiral, that you d4id not have enough information avail-
able to you to warrant you in doidg otherwise than you d41d?

Admiral Klmmel: That is correot.

Mr, Richardson: I have no further questions, Mr. Chair-
man.

The Chairman: Before the hearing began the commilttee
adopted the procedure by which questions from the committees

would alternste from the center toward each end. If it 1s
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azreeable to the ocommittee the chair would like to reverse
that proocedure during the remainder of the examination of
Admiral Kimmel and give the end man of thie group a break hy
beginning at the end and going toward the center. Is there
any obJection to that?

Mr, Murphy: I obj)eot to that, Mr, Chairman. I do not
think that there should be any varlance on any partioular wit-
ness. Having adopted a procedure I do not think there should

be any change as to one of the most important witnesses that-

is before us.
| The Chairman: Of course, if there is objectlon the chalr
will not do 1t.

The chair wishes to say that on aoccount of hls neocessary
absence yesterday and hils 1inabllity to hear the testimony given
by Admiral Kimmel on the examination by counsel he asks that

he may be passed until he can look over the testimony so that

he will not in hie questioning duplicate what has already besn
| brought out. Therefore, Cpngreseman Cooper of Tennessee will
be recognized.,

The Vice Chairman: Mr, Chairman, 1t is the plan to con-
itinue to 12:30, 1is it7
The Chairman: That 18 a matter for the comnittes. We

decided while the two houses were not in gession that we would

go to 12:30, There will be no legislation today, I suppose,
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Witness Kimmel

in the Senate. I don't know about the House. There may be
some bills introduced and speeches but it wlll probably be
a relief to the committee to be 1n session while they are
made.

Senator Brewster: Well, Mr. Chairman, as the chairman
18 the only gentleman who has had the privilege of makling a
speech in the Senate since we have rooonrehed I appreociate his
modesty, but I think --

The Chairman: If the Senator calls what I éai& %hé other
day a speech I would like to have a desoription of one of
Ithem that I really do make.

Senator Brewster: From certaln questione which were
| raised on the chairman's side of the Senate the other day about

|
} very important matters that one of the Senators who 18 usually

regular wished to bring up I would be glad if I could be pre-

I sent there to see Just what he has 1in mind.

The Chairman: The only queetion brought up the other

day waé whether bills and resolutions should be introduoced
l*prior to the President's message and I rather indicated that

if the President's message was not ready by today that we
|

| would take the halter off and let Senators introduce bills

| and resolutions, but so far as I know there l1ls no leglslatilve

bueiness.

Senator Brewster: I refer more specifically to Senator

§
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1 3
| Green of Rhode Island, who indicated that he had a matier of

great importance to bring up. 1 would like to knqw'lhat 1% 38,

The Chairman: The matter of great importance was a re-
solution which he proposes to introduce along with Senstor |
Smith of New Jersey authorizing the appointment of a commit- ‘fﬁ
tee to look into the qﬁestion of a Presidential succeseor,

Thére will be no actlon taken on it. He Juet wanted to 1n-
tr&duoo it. |

Senator Lucas: I think the Senator from Maine is about

ready to -make a speech on the floor of the Senate. I $hink
the ohairman ought to withdraw the remark.

The Chairman: Well, whatever the committee wants to do

about going on after 12 1e all right.
|
Senator Brewster: Without indicating any agreement with

the Senator from Illinoie, because I do not think I have made

1 many speeches and I haven't any 1in mind today, but I do think

that we could make an exception on this particrlar day in

view of the disocussion and I would appreciate 1t if you would.,
I felt from what the Chairman sald the other day on the floor
“ about going forvard today if the Presidentlal messaze were
| not received. I apvreciate the superlor knowledze in pos~
gession of the chairman as majority leader to determine 1%,

but I would personally be glad to have the opportunity of

| going on the floor at twelve o'clock Today to Bes what goeg on.
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The Chairman: We might as well then, under the olroum-

stances, agree to adjourn today at twelve. That 18 not a

precedent that we will set, however.

Senator Brewster: Not at all.

The Chairman: Congressman Cooper,

The Vice Chairman: Mr. Chairman, I desire to inquilre

briefly.
Admiral Kimmel, you Served in the Navy more than foriy

years?

Admiral Kimmel: That 18 correoct.

The Vice Chairman: Apnd at the time of the attack on
Pearl Harbor you were one of the senlor offlcere of the Navyt?
Admiral Kimmel: Yes, s8lr,

The Vice Chalrman: Very few were senlor to you in

st

| Hqmiral KEimmsl:

lenzth of service in the Navy at that time, weren't there?

Admiral Kimmel: Well, yee, I think that 1g a falr state-

ment.

The Vice Chairman: And on December 7, 1941 you held one
of the most important commands in the Navy?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, slr,
a The Vice Chairman: You received oconslderable communi-
cations from the Navy Department during the period of tlme
that you were in command of the Pucific Fleet?

I did,
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The Vice Chairman: There has been presented to the oomF
mittee a compilation including letters of Admiral Stark and
Admiral Kimmel to and from each other, ;I‘ho pages of thle com-
pilation gre not numbered but according to my count there are
241 pages in this exhibit No. 106,

Admiral Kimmel: I presume that may be correct.

The Vice Chairman: Whilch 18 coples of communications
from Admiral Stark to you and from you to Admiral Stark.
” Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Ghairmanz That would certainly show that there
was & oonsiderable volume of correspondence beiween ycu two
|| gentlement

Admiral Kimmel: That 1s right.

The Vice Chairman: There has also been presented as
exhibit 37 in this hearlng a document showing basio exhiblts

of dlepatchees of the Navy Departiment. Those pages are num-

bered and show that some 46 pages are inoluded here. An ex-~

amination of that document also shows that many of those dls-

|| patches went To you as Commender of the Pacific Fleet. That

lwould also indicate, wouldn't 1t, that the ocorresp -ondence and
dispatches from the Navy Department to you and from you back
Ito the Navy Department was quite volumilnous during the psarilod
| of time that you were in command of the Paciflc Fleel?

Admiral XKimmel: I might add that that 13 only a part of
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the correspondence, of the total oorrespondence. It includes
substantially all the so-called personal correspondence,
whioh was really offiolal, but in addition to that there was
a great deal of offiloclal ocorrespondence which has not been
presented to the committee.

The Vice Chairman: So that, then, it 18 true that there
was a great volume of ocorrespondence and dispatches passing
between the Navy Department and you?

Admiral Kimmel: Undoubtedly, Yes, sir, that 1is right.

The Vice Chairman: You also kept informed from all

| sources avallable to you as to the situation existing between

this country and Japan, didn't you?

Admiral Kimmel: I did, indeed.

The Vice Chairman: Did you consider war with Japan as
inevitable?

Admirsl Kimmel: Beginning whent

The Vice Chairman: At any time in your 1life have you
considered war with Japan inevitable?

Admiral Kimmel: In the few months before P earl Harbor

I thought war with Japan wae highly probable. A%t no time d4id

| I reach thé final conclusion that war was inevitable.

The Vise Chairman: Then your answer 1g that you never

d4d at any time consider war between the United States and

Japan as inevitablel

Lol il

*
>r
»d

d - >
P d-n. L P
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Admiral NHimmel: That 18 right. I thought it highly
probable.

The Vise Chairman: Well, when 4id you reach the ocon-
oclusion that 1t was highly probable?

Admiral Kimmel: Oh, I should say by the time Ibecame
Commander-in-Chief,

The Vice Chairman: And that wae in February of 19411

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chalrman: From that time on you considered that
war between the Unlited States and Japan was probablel?

Admiral XKimmel: Yes,

The Vice Chalrman: Or 414 you say hlghly probable, which?

Admiral Kimmel: Maybe I saild highly probable, yes: highly
probable.

The Vice Chalrman: DAid you ever consider that Japan would
_.attack Pearl Harborf |

Admiral Kimmel: I made estimates of the situation from
time to time. Had I considered that an attaock on Pearl Harbor

was imminent at any time my ocourse of action would have been

|| conslderably different from what 1t was. I get out from the

time I became Commander-in-Chlef to do everything within my
power to make Pearl Harbor secure azainet a Japanese attack.

I felt 1t was the part of prudence, it was our most important

bgse in the Pacifioc outslde the continental United States, buf
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2 I have testifled here, I _.plit into my statement that I did
3 || not consider an attack on Hawall any more than a remote poa-
4 sibility at the time that 1t came and that I had to make a
5 choice of how I was goiné to employ my forces.

e Does that answer your question, sir?

11
12
13
14

15
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~ | The Vice Chairman: I would 1ike you to be a little more

specific as to whether you at any time considered or was

-
i
- — | —

definite in your own mind that Japan would attack Pearl Harbor.

-
—

e | Admiral Kimmel: I thought it was a possibility. I

| . | at no time considered that an attack on Pearl Harbor was

- e—

7 {mminent, if that is what you mean.

. 8 | The Vice Chairman: 7You never did at any time consider
} 0 that an attack by Japan on Pearl Harbor was imminent ?

. o | Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

i The Vice Chairman: You considered that an attack on
12 Pearl Harbor might be possible, but you did not at any time

13 11 think 1t' was probable?

14 | Admiral Kimmel: Yes. In a campalgn, and the ups and

2 0 ‘NOLDNIHEYM "INYd ¥ ONVMA

15 "‘ downs of a campaign my opinion on the probability of an
|

.+ || attack on Pearl Harbor might very well nave changed considersbly.
.+ | I was looking forward in all of my efforts to any and &ll
10 eventualities and under all of these eventualities to be

.« | able to hold Pearl Harbor, to hold the Hawaiian Islands.

2) l: The Vice Chairman: But if I understand you correctly --
o | and I vant to try to‘ understand you --

’ 22 Admiral Kimmel: I want you to understand me, sir.
23 The Vice Chairman: That 18 my whole purpose in asking
24 l you these questions. My only purpose in serving on this

cormittee is to try to find the truth about Pearl Harbor.
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Admiral Kimmel: Yes, and 1 hope you get 1it.

The Vice Chairman: You were one of the head men' there.

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, and I will give you everything I
know .

The Vice Chairman: I think you ought to be in a position
to tell us considerable about it.

Admiral Kimmel: Yes,

The Vice Chairman: Then I would like to know, if it 1is

 approprine, a8 to whether you at any time thought Japan was

going to attack Pearl Harbor.
Admiral Kimmel: No, 1 did not.
The Vice Chairman: You did not?
Admiral Kimmel: Prior to December 7.
The Vice Chairman: All right. Then of course the

attack that did come on December 7 came as & great surprise

-~ to you?

P . i

i

e e i T W e A— -

!
|
|
|
|

| ——

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, I was surprised when it came. I
did not think it was coming.

The Vice Chairman: Then having reached the conclusion
that the war was highly probable be_twoen the United States

and Japan, where did you think the first attack would probably

. come?

Admiral Kimmel: I think I have stated that in my state-

ment. I expected the attack, any attack that eventuated aftvar
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November 27, to be confined to the Far East.

Senator Brewster: Mr. Chairman.

The Vice Chairman: Senator Brewster.

senator Brevwster: For the purpose of assisting, I would
1ike to have the reporter mark the passage where Admiral

' Kimmel spoke about taking every possible step tf'or the security

of Pearl Harbor as either the present examiner or others I

am sure will wvant to refer to that. Perhaps the reporter can

' already locate it now, the statement he mede a few questions
back about taking every possible step for the security of
: Pearl Harbor. I
Do you recall the answer?

The Vice Chairman: I recall the answer.

Senator Brewster: I would just like to have it marked,

b2
-
-
o
e
)
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that 1is all.

The Vice Chairmen: I hope the reporter will please note
tkst. T did not consider it exactly responsive to the question
1 was then asking and that is the reason 1 did not pursue
it further. I might ask some other questions about it.

Senator Brewster: It varies, as 1 understood it, with

what previously has been sald with respect to the respective
' pesponsibilities. That is why I thought 1t was significant
. and it ought, at any rate, to be noted in the record, and I

shall vant to ask about it. I will ask the reporter to note
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that.

The Vice Chairman: Along the line of the question I '
asked before the Senator from Maine intervened, I understood
you to say, Admiral, that you oon.aideréd that if war did come
between the United States and Japan, that Japan would probably
f5vat attack in the Far East. Is that correct?

Admiral Kimmel: As nearly as I can recollect my feelings
at. that time, I was not at all sure that Japan was goling to
attack the United States when it did. The information that I
had indicated to me, and to my associates, that the war would
probably -- that Japan's next move would be to go into Thailand,
and that it was by no means cortam that they were going to
ettack the United States. I do not mind saying that one of
the reasons vhy I felt Japan was not going to attack the
United States was because it was national suicide for them
to do so. I never at any time wavered in my pelief as to
that, 1ol aven immediately after Pearl Harbor, I had no
doubts.

The Vice Chairman: What do you mean by "immediately
after Pearl Harbor you had no doubts"? As to what?

Admiral Kimmel: That Japan was going to be wiped off
the mep before the end of the thing.

The Vice Chairman: 1 8ee.

Admiral Kimmel: Now I did not know of the Japanese
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"mad dog" attitude, as I have heard some people express 1it,

that they were of a state of mind where they were going to
| strike out regardless of how much they got hurt, or how much

they hurt anybody else.

the Vice Chairman: In other words, you thought they

i would have too much common sense to attack the United States?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: Well, at least in that respect 1
think you and Admiral Stark are in agreement.

ide:iivel Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairman: I believe it was Admiral Stark who
expressed in somewvhat those words that he gave them credit
for having too much common sense.

Admiral Kimmel : IYes.

The Vice Chairman: To jump on the United States.

Admiral Kimmel: Yes,

The Vice Chairman: And that was your view of 1it?

Admiral Kimmel: I never dissociated myself from that
view, and I could not conceive -- well, I never have understood
why they were so lacking in -- well, common sense, yes.

The Vice Chairman: But having reached the conclusion

. in your mind that war with Japan was highly probable, ir that

iid occur, why, it had to start somewhere, didn't 1it?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right, it had become highly
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probable, I mean that I had reached that canclusion due to
the information which I had received as to their actions.
;: But even "highly probable" does not mean inevitable, and I
thoeght there would be and there should be forces in Japan
. which would be able to see this thing.

The Vice Chairman: 4ell, had not there been more or less
x general feeling, Admiral, in the Navy for many years that
it was probable there would sometime be war between Japan
and the United States?

Admirel Kimmel: Well, yes, there had been a good many
veople in the service who felt that war with Japan and the
Duited States would come. It started back in my earliest
rezollection of this when Mr. Hobson back in about 1904 indi-
cated that, and various writings in all the years since
then indicated 1it.

The Vice Chairman: Are you one of those in the Navy
that entertained the view that war between Japan and the
TUnited States was sometime probable?

sdmiral ml: was sometime probable, you say?

The Vice Chairman: Probable, yes.

Admiral Kimmel: I never reached the stage where I thought
i var vith Japan was inevitable. -

The Vice Chairman: Fwell, did you think war was golng

to ocour hetveen Jepan and the United States?
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Admiral Kimmel: I thought there was a very good chance
of 1t, as I told you before here.

The Vice Chairman: All right.

Admiral Kimmel: Eventually. What I wanted to know

above everything else was when it was going to start.

e s

The Vice Chairman: I am satisfied many people would have

2iked to have known that. They did not send out any message

. ng to when it was going to start, did they?

Admiral Kimmel: Fretty nearly.

The Vice Chairman: And based on that, why, the Navy
Department issued you an order, did it not?

Admiral Kimmel: Sir?

| The Vice Chairmen: Based on that information which you

| gay was pretty nearly & notice, the Navy Department issued

you an order?

|
i' Admirael Kimmel: Yes, they issued me certain information

and cgertain advice.

The Vice Chairman: Did not they issue yocu & direct order,

Admiral?
! Admiral Kimmel: The only direct order in the message

which 1 received was this "execute an appropriate defensive
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The Vice Chairman: You have issued and received many
ordert during your service in the Navy, haven!t you?
Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir.

r The Vice Chairman: Did you regard the dispatch you

~ recwived on November 27, 1941 as an order from the Navy De-
|
! partment?

i ——

Agmiral Kimmel: The part "execute an appropriate defensive

duployment”, certainly.
I
| The Vice Chairman: All right.

Admiral Kimmel: And I executed it in a way that I

thought would best meet the situation.
| The Vice Chairman: I had one more question I wanted to
ask back along the line of inguiry I wvas making before goling
o that message that we have just' referred to.
\ Yo stated here yesterday that you considered that the
| yest minds of the Navy were at Pearl Harbor at the tlime of’
thx» attack,

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, I consider there were no better
minds in our Navy, or any other Navy, than at Pearl Harbor
' »t the time of the attack.

The Vice Chairman: Did any of those best minds expect

A ——— S ——— . - —— A —— W ——— -
-

. an attack on Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Kimmel: So far as I know, they did not - not

'z

|
a
|

&6 the time it came.
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5" The Vice Chairmen: Well, did they expect an attack on

-

. Pearl Harbor at any time, as far as you know?

A ¥ Admiral Kimmel: I do not like to speak for a body of
?

" men like that, but insofar as they expressed their views to

o | ma, I think they shared my views fairly completely.

“g

The Vice Chairman: You were in command of all of them?

8 | Admiral Kimmel; That is right.

(8) o | The Vice Chairman: And ncne of them ever expressed any

.+ | view to you that indicated they expected an attack on Pearl

rarioa?

Admiral Kimmel:; That is right.

The Vice Chairman: Now you were asked somo questions
't | mbout =-

T Admiral Rimmel: (Interposing) At the time i1t came, I

9 O 'NOLONIMEYA\ “IN¥e ¥ QuYM

it ' &m Salking about.

I S vhe Vice Cheirmen: Did anybody expect an attack on

i+ | ¥earl Harbor at any time, as far as you know?

¢ Admiral Kimmel: Not at any definite time, no. They

sl-eyed =ith me the idea we should be prepared for eventualities

-——

cut there, and the situation might change and 1t might develop
izto a time when we could expect an attack on Fearl Harpor.

M The Vice Chairmen: But up until December 7, 1041,

1 || you and none of the other so-called best minds stationed atv

i
25 |! Pearl Harbor expocted an attack on Pearl Harbor?
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Admiral Kimmel: That is right.
The Vice Chairman: All right. Now you were asked some

jquestions about conversation between you and Captain Zacharias.

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir,

The Vice Chairman: He was an officer under your command
at the time?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman; And you stated that you did have a
sonversation with him in March of 1941, and you did not recalil
that he said anything to you about expecting an air attack on
Poar! Harbor, is that correct?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right. I made such a statement
as that.

The Vice Chairman: Did you have any conversation with
LhZie av any other time other than March, 10417

Agmiral Kimmel: Not that I now recall.

fhe Vice Cheirman: You had no other conversation with
him »% all, that you remember?

Admiral Kimmel: Well, I cannot recall every conversation
I had wvith every officer in Pearl Harbor, but so far as 1l

¥u:cw, Captain Zacharias never expressed any ldea that an

way have expressed such sentiments, I do not know.

The Vies Cheirman: Now, then, Admiral, you say that when
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voo received the message of November 24, 1941 from the

Chief of Naval Operations you considered that with the

' Senior Officers of your command.

Admirel Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: And that all of them concurred with
you in the view that there was not anything in that mesrage
t.o cause you to anticipate any trouble at Pearl Harbor?

Admiral Kimmel: To anticipate an attack on Pearl Harbor.

The Vice Chairman: All right. -

Admiral Kimmel: An air attack on Pearl Harbor.

The Vice Cheirman: Well, any other kind of attack on
Fearl Harbor? '

Admiral Kimmel: You are talking about the message of
Jovsmber 24 and not the message of November 27 now? You
paid the 24th.

The Vice Chairman: I said I expect to ask you a few
questions about both, but I now have before me the message
o® November 24, and to refresh the memory of both of us I
will just read iv.

Senator Brewster: Mr, Chairman, are you going to go
on? We are a little past our hour now.

The Vice Chairman: I beg your pardon. We will suspend
«t this point to 2:00 o'clock, Admiral. Thank you for calling

my attention to that.
(\hereupon, at 22:03 o‘clock p.m., the sommittee recessed

until 2:00 ©'clock p.m. of the same day.)
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AFTZRNOON SESSION 2:00 P, M,

TESTIMONY OF REAR ADMIRAL HUSBAND E. KIMMEL

(resumed)

- e o=

The Vice Chairman: The cormittee will please be 1n order.

Doeg ocounsel have anything at thls tlme?

Mr. Richardson: Nothing, sir.

The Vice Chalrman: Admiral Kimmel, do you have anythilng
you want to present before the examination 18 resumed?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir, I have.

The Vice Chairman: You may proceed, 8lr.
| Admiral Kimmel: I think I may have left the wrong lim-

preeslon in regard to these torpedoee by leaving the statements

about these long vanes and large rudders, that putting these

long vaned and large rudders was the only thing necessary To

<
<
=
o
9
v
«
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3
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~
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make these torpedoes run in shallow waters.
Ag I told you, I had never seen the torpedoes but dur-

| Ang the noon recess Admiral Smith informe me that he dld ex-

amine the torpedoes and, incidentally, Admirsl Smith 1s an

off 1cer who has had a great deal of exp erilence with torpedoes
and understands them very well.

He said in additicn to putting long and staunch vanes on
and rudders on theee torpedoese it was necessary To greatly
strengthen the after bodles. That 1n our experiments in drop=-

ping torpedoes the trouble was that the ehock of lmpact woulc
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|
{
= i break the torpedoes in two and, therefore, before these old

[

3 torpedoes were suitable for dropping from an airptane they had

l
4 to have their after bodiee very greatily s trengthened, prac-

s || ti0ally rebuilt.

6 Also, the other faotor in connection with 1%t andpprobably
7 the most difficult was to get a gyro. The gyro, as you know,

8 |lwas the agenoy by which the torpedo was kept on a straight

) course and this gyro had to be completely rebulXt and strength-

10 |lened s¢ that when a torpedo Btruck the water the gyro nelther

E— .

11 ||upset nor carried away completely, in either event making the
12 torpedo entirely inoperative, and in Justlice to our own Navy
13 ||Bureau of Ordnance I think that I should make that statement.
14 Mr. Richardson: Well, Admiral, in ommenting on 1t what

15 |ldifference would the depth of water have to do wlth the effect

3 AOTOMIMZAW JUAT & QRAW

-
—_

16 [lon the torpedo of dropping it to whlch you have referred? If
17 it broke in two it would break by reason of striking on the

18 ||eurface of the water, wouldn't it

19 | ” Admirasl Kimmel: Yes.

20 Mr., Richardson: Well, would 1t make any difference

21 |l[whether the water was forty feet or eighty reet'doep'f
’ 22 Admiral Kimmel: Well, there is something 1in that, but to
23 |lmake these t;rpedoea effeotive to drop them from airplanes all

24 |/these things had tc be done and these 0ld torpedoes, moderniz-

25 ‘mg them t0o make them sultable for dropplng from airplanes, was
|
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not merely a question of putilng more vanes on them, That 18
the point that I was trying to make.

The Vioce Chalrman: Does that complete your statement on
that?

Admiral Kimmel: That is all I have, sBir.

The Vice Chairman: Admiral Kimmel, thils morning I asked
you a few questlions about your conversation with Captain
7acharias. At that time I did not have before me the photo-~
atatio'oOpiee af certain documents that have been,preseﬁtad
here to the committee wlth respeot to Captailn Zacharlas and

Iat the conclusion of the morning's seeslon counsel handed me

this copy which 1s the only one before the committee. It 18
hesded, "Notes, correspondence and reports relating to Pearl
Harbor and evente leading up To 1t", and quite a number of

stems are listed on the front page, but I will pass on down

| to an’~item appeering about the middle of thils page, Which
I will read to you:

| tMaroh 1941: Conversation wilth Admiral Kinmel,

| CinCPao" -~ that was you -- "and hls Chlef of Staff,

| Ceptain," it looke like, "W. W, Smiih, U/ 8:8."

'q Admirsl Kimmel: That is right.
The Vioe Chairman: (Reading)

"Regarding Nomura, notifying of surprise attack on

‘ cur Tleet by Jepanese in oasse hostllltles eventuate. De-

‘ﬂ‘hm“- - w I‘ L.
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tails of thig conversation are covered in a personal

and confidential memo to Chief of Staff, to CinCPaoc,

Réar Admiral Milo Draemel, U.S.N., for presentation to

cinCPao (Admiral Nimitz) and dated March 17, 1942; copy

attached, "

Then I turn over to thie copy to which he refers in that
note. I will not take time to read all of it but in the
fourth paragraph of this headed, "Personal and confidential
| nemorandum for Admiral Draemel, March 17, 1942," I read you
as follows:

"Only a few people know that I had cautioned Admiral

Kimmel and Captain Smilth during the course of an hour

and a half conversation with them dof the exaot events o

take place on 7 December not only as to what would hap~

pen but also how and when. My only errci was that the

Japanese were after four battleships and they got five."

Do you recall any such statement as that, or any informa-
tion of that nature given you by Captain Zacharlas?

Admiral Kimmel: I think there 1s very little I can add

to my previous testimony on that sublect. In the past few

wda:s I heard of this memorandum and I had read that memorandum

before I testified before this committee and if you want me

to olarify any of my previous statements I will be pleased to

do so, but I am willing to let £t etand as 1t 18,

l_;....'_.- LT, R -__-I. '-—u_.’-—-—-m{"_'_ﬁa'v.‘_mgm

.

»
v - .
- ‘__"._i-—-'- L= S

-
i A -

M R Y, T (LN S ot ol nC ol i T




oS5

JUAY 4 QRAW

3 O .MOTOMIHBAW

| : 7139

Witnese Kimmel . Questions by: The Vice Chairman

| The Vice Chairman: Well, in questions asked you by

counsel and those which I asked you you gtated that ycu d4id

not remember ==

Admiral Kimpel: That 1s correoct.

The Vice Chairman: (Continuing) -- any conversatlion with {

Captain Zacharilas along this line.

Admiral Kimmel: I remembered a conversation with Cap-.

tain Zacharlas .'
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\

I

|

]

|

-

The Vice Chairman: But 1 have now triea to refresh your

IMOYY .

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Cheirmsn: If it is worth anything in that
respect.

Admirel Kimmel: Yes.

The Viee Chairman: By reading you what appears in this
mamuba.ndum prepared by him, which; has been preaentéd‘to this
conmittee for whatever it may be worth.

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairman: And I am novw asking you whether he

 said to you what he states there, or anything like that.

Admiral Kimmel: He did not. And furthermore, I would
have paid very little attention to any man wvho told me in

March of 1941 that an attack was going to occur on the Pacific

' Fleet in Pearl Harbor on December 7, 1941

The Vice Cheirman; I might say, Admiral that certain

members of the committee requested that Captailn zacharias?
name be added to the 1ist of witnesses To appear here.

Admiral Kimmel: I would be very glad to have you hear

nim.

The Vice Chairman: I was not one of those that made the
request, but the request was made .

Admiral Kimmel: All right.
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N
' The Vice Chairman: However, that was a long time before
t:is thing even came to our attention.

Admiral Kimmel: I would like To invite attention to

= | cne thing. The date of his memorandum was nearly a year after

1118 purported conversation with me.

- -

The Vice Chairman: I think that is correct. I think

nis memorandum is dated March 17, 1942. But my purpose in

aa‘king you and inviting your attention to it was I wanted

o you,; if you felt prepared to do so, to give a direct ansver

48 to whether that was said to you or not.

11 |
¥

Admiral Kimmel: I thank you very nmuch, sir.

The Vice Chairman: Then, Admiral, just bef'ore the noon

-

I

s | recess I was in the act of asking you some questions about

-

i~ || the message of November 24, 1941 that was addressed to you

D O "NOLODNIHEY A "MINYd 2 OMYA

10 along with several other responsible naval officials.

Admiral Kimmel: That 1s right.

| : The Vice Chairman: And you received the message?
i Admiral Kimmel: Yes, I receilved the message.

an | The Vice Chairman: This message states:

> e | "Chances of favorable outcome of negotiations with

Jjapan very doubtful.”

]
‘'

| That i1s a definite statement, isn?t 1t?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

-

The Vice Chairman: You had no doubt that that was the
Pact?

= e — . — - W — -
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Admiral Kimmel: Very doubtful.

The Vice Cheirman: I say, you have no doubt that I

stated the fact?

Admirel Kimmel: I believed it, if that 1s what you mean.

The Vice Chairman: You believed that anyhow before you

received this, did you not?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, I should say that is true.

And at least that stated

The Vice Chairman: All right.

e. clear statement of fact of the Navy Department to you?

b 8

Admiral EKimmel: Yes.,

The Vice Chairman: “This situation coupled with state-

=wents of Japanese Government and movement their naval and
wilitary rorces indicate in our opinion that a surprise

sgegressive movement in any direction” - now that states &

definite fact?
Admiral Kimmel: "In any direction", yes, that is what

it says.

The Vice Chairmen: -"a surprise aggressive movement

in any direction".

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: That is a very definite statement

cf faoct?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Viea Chsirman: Then following that, " .including
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atisalc on Philippines or Guam 1s & possibility. Chief of

staff has seen this dispatch conours and requests action

addressees to inform Senior Army Officers their areas."
That was & definite statement and request?

Admiral Kimmel: I would 1ike to invite your attention

to the fact that the “surprise aggressive movement in any

direction” is somewhat qualified by the statement "including

s attack on Philippines or Guam."

The Vice Chairman

PI-

L]

!
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hl < The Vice Chairman: Of course, Admiral, after all
fls | , |
AL ' that is a guestion of construction.

a Admiral Kimmel: That is right.
The Vice Chairmen: It is & question of your construc-
tion; it is a question of the construction of the Navy

Department?

-l

Admiral Kimmel; But nevertheless, it is fthere.

0 The Vice Chairman: And it is a question of construc-

tion that I or anybody else might give to 1t?

| Admiral Kimmel: That 1is right.

{ o | The Vice Chairman: But the words are there?

' Admirel Kimmel: That is right. The words are there.
3 The Vice Chairman: All right.

15 | Admiral Kimmel: " -- including an attack on Philip-

D Q NOLADNIHSYM ivd W dUv A

n rines or Gusm" is also there.

- Thoa Viee Chalrren: Al) right. If I say I am going

o ———

(e to take a trip to my homs, including a visit to one or two

10 other points, the fact that I include a reference to one or

- —

‘0 two other points does not change the fact that I said I am
‘? going home, does 1t?

R Admirel Kimmel: Well, I suppose not.

P | The Vice Chairman: All right.
Admiral Kimmel: But in this case, "surprise aggressive

- || movement in any direction including an attack on the Philip-

\
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pines or Guam," you are entitled to your own opinion, sir,
and T do not want to change that, but when you say "{nclud-
ing the PFhillippines or Guam, 1t‘seems to 1limit the 1ideas
of the man who is sending it to the vicinity of the Far
East somewhere. |

The Vice Chairman: Well, anyhow it states "a surprise
aggressive movement in any direction"?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairman: It says that?

Admiral Kimmel: That 1is right.

The Vice Chairman: Then following that, "including
attack on Philippines or Guam."

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairman: Now, it is your interpretation, and
you gave the construction at the time you received it that
those last quoted words, "{neluding attack on Philippines
or Guem," qualify or limit the previous statement?

Admiral Kimmel: To a degree, yes.

The Vice Chairman: I might say to you that I questioned
Admiral Stark about that.

Admirsl Kimmel: Yes, slr.

The Vice Chairman: And I recall I questioned Admirel
Turner, who is the men who wrote the message --

Admiral Kimmel: Yes,
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h3 The Vice Chairman: --and their construction 1is
. ~ entirely different from yours.

Admiral Kimmel: I have no doubt of that.

i The Vice Chairman: So after all, it is a difference

+ | of opinion on that point?

7 Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir.

The Vice Chairman: They stated, as I recell, that

that meant just what these words sald to them.

. — — . ——— A — i —

b o Admiral Kimmel: I think so, toag.

The Vice Chairmen: "A surprise aggressive movement 1in

=
- e——

any direction." Now it is your view that the following

TIMNyd § OOHYMN

- -

words qualify or limit them?

=

-
-
-
- e — e m—

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir, but I would like to call

1 |1 your attention again to the fact that this message of

D O 'NOLDHNIHSYAM

& 1¢ || November 24 was foilowed three days later by the message

r 7 | of November 27.

1 The Vice Chairman: Yes. If you will indulge me a moment
o |' I am hoping to get to that. I am just trying to take the

.+ ' cold words that appear on the printed page of this message

and discuss them with you. That is my only purpose of

-~ | 4inquiring ebout this dispatch here.

k Admiral Kimmel: I should be pleased to do just what

you wat, sir, but this message stood undiluted for only

three days. At the end of three days I had another message.
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The Vice Chairman: All right. It also states,

"Utmost secrecy necessary in order not to complicate an

already tense situation or precipitate Japanese a.c"bion."

| Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairman: The words "tense situastion" are

there are they not?

Admiral Kimmel: The "tense situation” I cannot say wvas

anything new.
| The Vice Chairman: The situetion had been tense for

' some time?
)
|

Admiral Kimmel: Oh, yes.

The Vice Chairman: And according to the words of

this message it was still tense?

f Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

| The Vice Chairman: All right.

) "Guam will be informed seperately." That concludes

.~ the message.

Well, now, what did that message mean to you, Admiral?

Admiral Kimmel: That message meant to me to do what-

ever I could to be prepared for anything that might make --

The Vice Cha.:lfman (:I.nterpoaing): If you will pardon

me et that point, I do not know whether you have quite

|| finished your statement or not, but this message does not

| tell you to do anything except notify the Army, doesn't 1€?
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Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

h5

The Vice Chairman: It was not directed to you on any

—-— —— — i ——
- =

4 | Dpoint except to notify the Army?

Admiral Kimmel: That was information.

The Vice Chairman: Purely an informetion message?

— gy R = -

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

- — o —— -

The Vice Chairman: And it referred to aggressive move-
ment in any direction, and "tense situation” and so on?
Admiral Kimmel: There is one thing thet might be

|

|

| considered a directive in there.

|

| The Vice Chairman: What is that?

l Admiral Kimmel: That is the "utmost secrecy necessary.'

The Vice Chairman: It might be. Yes, that is true.

D 0 "NOLONIMSY/A ""INvYyd T OdHY W\

|

|

)
' i] Tt might be.
j G I{ So, as I understod you to state in response to the
=2 previous question I asked you, thet message meant to you
r | that you were supposed to do whatever you thought was

necessary to take care of the situation?

R —— _....
L3 ’ ;]
L
o

20 | Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

i The Vice Cha:l.t"ma.n: And you accepted 1t as a warning

to that exteht, that you understood you were supposed to

¥ -~ ! do whatever is necessary to take care of the situation?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes, that 1s right.

I
I

| The Vice Cheirmen: Then, I invite your attention to
|




Witness Kimmel . Questions by: The Vice Chalrman

h6 "the message of Rovembér 27, 1941, which was addressed to
you, the Commander of the Pecific Fleet, and sent to two

: ; other officers for information?

e | Agmiral Kimmel: Yes.

G The Vice Chairmen: It was sent directly to you and

' Admiral Hart?

i
!

4 l Admiral Kimmel: Yes, sir.

-~

The Vice Cheirman: And of course you received it?

1t 1I Admiral Kimmel:  Yes.

! Now, in connection with this message of the 24th, in
a letter to me sent by Admiral Stark on November 25, 1941,
he said, in a postscript:

"I held this up pending a meeting with the President

and Mr. Hull todey. I have been in constent touch with

5 0 ‘NOLDNIHESYMA TNivd ¥ duy Ay

Mr. Hull, and it was only after a long telk with him that

)7 T sent the message to you a day or two ago gshowing the

- - e — o ———

.+ | gravity of the situation.”

Thet I take to mean the message of the 24th, which you

'~ have just been talking about.

The Vice Cheirman: What is the date of the letter

thet you are referring to now?

Admiral Kimmel: November 25.

ny |1 The Vice Chairman: All right.

or, ! Admival Kimmel: "W1ll confirm it all in todey's meeting
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h7 " as did the President., Neither would be surprised over a

Witness Kimmel

Japanese surprise attack. From many angles an attack on

| the Philippines would be the most embarrassing thing that

could happen to us. There are 80me here who think it likely

to occur. I do not give it the weight others do, but I

(i

inecluded it because of the strong feeling among some people.

You know I have generally held that it was not time for
I still

8

- ——— e — — - __

the Japanese to proceed ageinst Russla. AlsO,

05 |

ook for en advence into Thalland, Indo-China, Burme

rather
i{ Road area as the most likely.

ii

| "T won't go into the pros and cons of what the United

3tates may do. I will be damned if I know. I wish I did.

Y A ol a % T Y A

The only thing I know is that we may~do most anything and

that is the only thing I know to be prepared for. Or we

9 Q "MOLDONI

may do nothing. I think it is more 11kely to be anything.”

1 SR

Certainly, when I received that it qualified to a

. econsiderable extent the dispatch which I had recelved

{ !

before on the 24th.

— —_—— =
"

The Vice Chairman: When did you receive that?

Admiral Kimmel: On the 3rd of December.

L i — il
-

The Vice Chairmen: The 3rd of December?

| Admiral Kimmel: I did, yes, sir.

* The Vics Chairman: Still even what Admiral Stark

-~ A l

i stated there indicated that the situetion was still quite
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h8 tense and serious, did it not?

Admirel Kimmel: Oh, yes.

The Vice Chairmen: It did not detract any from that?

Admiral Kimmel: No, that is right.

The Vice Chairman: All righﬁ.

Admiral Kimmel: But it was concerned much moré with
. what we should do than what Japan was expected to do to us.

The Vice Chairman: But it still emphasized that the

., . situstion was tense and serious?

Admirsel Kimmel: That is right.

nitd & Lovy N

f The Vice Chairmen: And it did not retract anything
that had been saeid to you in the message of the 24th?
1y ] Admiral Kimmel: Well, he stats,"I do not give 1t the

weight others do, but I included it because of the strong

o SO "NOLODHINIVYS

- ——-

.« | feeling among some people. You know that I have generally

- ' held that it was not time for the Japanese to proceed

| against Russia. I still do. Also I still rather look for
an advance into Thailand, Indo-China, Burme Road area, as

the most likely."

of them except att ck Russia, did they not?

Admiral Kimmel: Eventually, yes.

|
|
1
I
%‘ The Vice Chairmaen: As & matter of fact, they did all
i
|
|
|

| The Vice Cheirmen: They did everything he mentioned

there except what he says about Ruasia?
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h9 - | Admiral Kimmel: But that 1imits the perspective,

after all, considerably.

The Vice Chairman: There isn't anything in there that

e — — e — e .
- - = =

said that they were not going to do anything that he indi-
. | cated in the message oOf November 24%

| Admiral Kimmel: But I think any reasonable man would

. | take that as a qualification.

il e i =

The Vice Chairmen: Well, of course, s0me men did not.

A

|

{ .« | You say you did.
! Admirel Kimmel: That is right.
‘#
|

The Vice Chairman: That is the point I am getting at.

TAYd ¥ v A

1 3 l| Then inviting your attentlon t©o the message of November
|

57, to the words "this dispatch is to be considered a war

e — o ——— e — — i
& e
. - . o

! warning," you say you never knew of that language being

9 O "NOLDNIMSYM

4 .« || used in any other message in your 40 years' experience in
;| the Navy?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

|
|
.
o | The Vice ChaiFmen: Why do you think responsible of fi-
-' :
I; cials of the Navy Department sent that message to you?

|

i Admiral Kimmel: 7You mean now, Or when I received 1t?

J 2 ; The Vice Chairman: At the time you received it. Why
i .
.. ' 3ia you think the Chief of Naval Operations, the head of the

Upited States Nevy, and responsible officials working with

"3
- e — - =
— ——— £l

or, |l him said those words to‘:rou?
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h10 Admiral Kimmel: Well, I think I have covered that
very thoroughly :I.n‘ the statement I made. I do not know
how I can add to that any, sir.
The Vice Chairman: I have no doubt, Admiral, you
have d_one that to your complete satisfaction, but unfortunate-
ly I am sorry it 1s not completely satisfactory to me, and
I am hoping that I might be able to get some further informa-

‘ |

tion from you on 1it.

8

T would still like to know why you thought the head of

i

the United States Navy would say those words to you 1if they

UhyY '
Lo
e

'

did not mean anything.

" lii'i -II'ITI'I “

|
i Admiral Kimmel: They did mean something.
The Vice Chairman: All right. What did they mean?

| Admiral Kimmel: They meant that they were a character-

3 @ 'NOLDNINS

ization of the rest of the message wvhich came to me,

Lf The Vice Chairmasn: Did you accept it as such?

‘ Agmiral Kimme}: On, yes.

1&: The Vice Chairmen: But you still state, as I understood
1t, in effect, thet the inclusion of the words "This dis-
patch is to be considered a war warning," did not mean

!

|

|

|

i. anything, did not carry much weight with you?

i

1 Admiral Kimmel: I think 1t added very little to the
!

ol | ' meﬂﬂage-

i The Vice Cheirman: It added very little to the message?
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Witness Kimmel

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: And you do not know this, I

suppose, and that is why the head of the United States N;vy
would put those words into such s message? You do not
think that they would amount to anything?

Admiral Kimmel: I will put it this way: It did not
mean to me, nor to my associates, wvhat Admiral Turner and
Admiral Stark they werse intended to mean., I have told
in great detall, I think, what those messages meant to me.

Incidantally, air, before I brought this statement
of mine down here, I asked various members of my former
staff, who happen to be here in Washington, Admiral Smith,
Admirel Delaney, Admiral Murphy, Admiral Kitts, Admirel
Pye, who was ﬁﬁe of my task force commsnders -- those were
all that happened to be available in this area -- to read
this stateéent, and to indicate to me any place that I had
made an error, an over-statement or an under-statement,
and they agree that factually the statement of vhat occurred,
what we thought and what we did at the time 18 & correct
statement.

Mp. Murphy: Does the gentleman yield for just one ques-
tion?

The Vice Chairman: Yes.

Mr., Murphy: Do I understand thet all of these admirels




Witness Kimmel Questions by: The Vice Chairman
Mr. Murphy

have gone over the statements you have given to the com-
mittee and esgreed with it before you submitted it to the
committee?

Admiral Kimmel: That is correct. I asked them to check

:i.t. I¢ there was anything wrong I wanted to know about 1t.

TINYd ¥ Quvym

|
1
.
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The Vice Chairmen: In that connection, was that statement
written by you?
Admiral Kimmel: This statement is, to my mind, the same
i1Sory that I attempted to tell to the Roberts Commission.
The Vice Chairman: With all deference to you, Admiral,
't asked: Did you write this statement?
Admirel Kimmel: I will answer your question, sir, 1f
vou will give me an opportunity. I will try to, at least.

Senator Brewster: I think he is entitled to that courtesy,

Mr. Chairman.
The Vice Chairman: All right.

Admiral Kimmel: I presented the same thing, if not I1n

the same words , to the Naval Court of Inquiry. This statement

¥u8 prepared under my direct supervision. T had the assistance

— - E— m—

of counsel and I had the assistance and criticism of various
' other people in getting it up. This 18 my statement. I had

xn great deal of assistance in preparing it. I am not &

literary genius and I couldnit have submitted it in the words

; shat 1t is here.

| But the ideas, the facts and everything that 1s in it

’ Are mine.
1

The Vice Cheirman: But you did not write the statement?

Admiral Kimmel: I wrote various parts of it. I will

say that the words, I wvas assisted there. The ideas are mine.
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The Vice Chairman: But you did not write or distate
the statement yourself?
Admiral Kimmel: Not all of it, no.

The Vice Chairman: All right; thank you.

Senator Brewster: Mr. Chairman, may I ask, has that
auestion been asked of other witnesses vho appeared here?

The Chairman: The record will show whether it has or
not.

genator Brewster: I think it is regrettable, and I
hesitate to comment, but I think that as to all the people
wh¢ have appeared here we have recogu.ze‘d that the statements
were composite products, and I never before heard that
ariticism.

The Vice Chairmen: The only reason I thought of asking
the question was because the Admiral himselt stated that
he conferred vith &1l of these other officers that he named
in the preparation of this statement. I think it is &

perfectly logical and reasonable question for me to ask --

' »ow much of this statement then is Admiral Kimmel's stalement.

Admiral Kimmel: Every bit of it is mine.

The Vice Chairmen: And how much of it was prepared,

~ suggested or dictated by someone else. He said it wvas a

acmposite thought and idea of all these officers he conferred

with, so I am just trying to find the fact.
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Admiral Kimmel: I tried to give you the fact.

The Vice Chairman: All right. 1 thank you.

Senator Brewster; I didn't understand his statement
to be as you stated 1t. 1 don't want that implication to
appear., He stated that he submitted this to a variety of
officers on the staff and they indicated their conocurrence.
That was his statement. About his counsel, and others, that
VL8 assiutanoe.

The Vice Chairman: I hadnit thought anything about it
antil the gentleman fraom Pennsylvania asked him the question
«a to whether this was the result of conferences with all
these other officers named by him and he said yes.

Now, Admiral, getting back to the message of November
27 that I was seeking to secure 3ome inf'ormation about, I
vould like to ask you, with your permission, once more vhat
sou think the words "this dispatch is to be considered a
ver wvarning", what those words mean?

Admiral Kimmel: At the time 1 received it, and in
conjunction with the rest of the dispatch, the part of that
~igpatch which appealed to me, "and an aggressive move by
Japan is expected" --

The Vice Chairman: Pardon me, I dislike to interrupt,
hut I am asking this simple question, what these words 1

quoted, "this dispatch 1s to be considered & war varning",

L]
.. = P :-a‘:--r.-—.:'—-l- }hﬂﬁ&,




Witness Kimmel Questions by: The Vice Chalirman

what they meant to you, Admiral.
Admiral Kimmel: It meant -- 1 am trying to tell you, sir.

T am trying to tell you what this dispatch meant to me. It

R

meant to me that war was going to eventuate in the Far East.

The Vice Chairman;: That is all it meant to you?

Adm;u;al Kimmel: That is what I got out of 1it.

The Vice Chairman: All right.

"Negotiations with Japan looking toward stabllization
of conditions in the Pacific have ceased.”

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: That was a clear statement of fact,
Ja8nt 1t? ‘

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairmen: You knew that from what 1t says here?

-
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Admiral Kimmel: That is what 1t says.
The Vice Chairman: "and an aggressive move by Japan

expected within the next few days.”

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: That is a clear statement?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairmen: And you accepted that for what iv

| says?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairmen: "##*the number and equipment of
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troops and the organization of naval task forces

Japanese
‘4ndicates an amphibious expedition against either the

Philippines, Thal or Kra Peninsula or possibly Borneo."

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

'il?ho Vice Chairman: That was & clear statement as to

Admirel Kimmel: That is right.

The Vice Chairman: "Execute an appropriate defensive

deployment” .
That is a clear order to you, isnit 1t?

Admiral Kimmel: That is right.

The Viee Cheirman: "Execute an appropriate defensive

" deployment."
Admiral Kimmel: 7Yes.

j The Vice Cheirman: Did you do that?

Admiral Kimmel: Yes.

The Vice Chairman: Completely?

I did.

Admiral Kimmel: You rmst read the rest of it.

The Vice Chairmen: "preparatory to" --

|
* Admiral Kimmel: "sarrying out the tasks assigned in

WPL-46."

The Vice Chairman: 7Yes. That is the end of the sentence.

Admiral Kimmel: I executed an appropriate defensive

deployment preparatory to exscuting the tasks assigned in
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WPL-46.

The Vice Chairman: S0 you complied yrith that order?

Admiral Kimmel: I complied with that order and I took
every precaution in the Havaiian area that 1 thought the
situation justified and the probabilities demanded. The
Fleet was on the alert. The use of the patrol planes I have
given in great detail here, my reasons for taking the steps
I took, and I have also given in great detall my reasons
for the disposition of the Fleet at the time, in the days
before and at the time of the attack.

The Vice Chairmen: Then 1t states:

fynform District and Army authorities -

You did that?

Admiral Kimmel: YesS.

The Vice Chairman: "A similar warning 18 being sent
by War Department . SPENAVO inform British. Continental

districts Guam Samoa directed take appropriate measures against
\

sabotage .”

Now, I understood you to state, Admiral, that even b o

you had understood that Japan was going to attack that you

- would not have moved your battleships out of the harbor.

|
|

\

l

Admirael Kimmel: Will you please show me that?
The Vice Chairman: I got the impression from vhat you

stated in response to a question asked here.

-_ 3 - . W ¥
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Admiral Kimmel: I don’t recall making such &a statement

. as i:llllii ©

\
I

The Vice Chailrman: Just a moment. I think I can find

- my note here.

T will ask you this question: Did you state you would

| not have taken the pattleships out of the harbor even if you

had expected the attack vas coming?

and when did I find out that the attack was going to come?
The Vice Chairman: Well, I just want to ask you this
'questionz Did you state you would not have taken the battle-
ships out of the harbor if you had expected the attack?
Admiral Kimmel: I may have made-a statement that AT I
had received this information on the morning of December 7,

vhen I wouldnit have had time to get them out, that I would

of making such a statement.

The Vice Chairman: I understood you to say you would
have sent smaller craft out but would have kept battleships
' 4n the harbor probably for use of their anti-aircraft guns.
| Did you sey anything like that?

1 Admiral Kimmel: Yes, I made that statement, and I made

that aj.atemant because -- I predicated that on receiving the

mowledge of an attack too late te do anything else, and I

Admiral Kimmel: If I had expected the attack was coming -=

- e
o s, e VR

ey

. not have taken them out. Other than that I have no re collection
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|

predicated it on the chances of getting the battleships

4+ | caught in the channel on the way going out and blocking the

|
i
P
!
|
|

r '} That was on the basis of receiving the information 80

3 whole channel, and the various other oqnsidomtimia.

¢ | late that, by one olglock, I couldn’t have completed a de-

7 | ployment.
8 The Vice Chairman: But if you had --

0 Admiral Kimmel: I stated in other places that if I

'~ | had received the information a day or two days before then

;v | I certainly would have taken the ships to sea.

ol The Vice Chairman: All right.

1) I believe you stated that you did not consider it the

.+ | duty of the Fleet to defend Pearl Harbor?

s Admiral Kimmel: That is correct.

D G "NOLONIMSYA MNvd © AnviA

1o The Vice Chairman: Well, wasn®t 1t your duty to defend

17 | yourself so far as you could?

1B Admiral Kimmel: Oh, yes; and it was my duty to do

190 everything I could to destroy any enemy forces. But that
20 is quite a different thing from being tied down to have to

>, | pemain in one vicinity for the defense of that particular

1_. e | locality.
pa | The Vice Chairman: Now, you stated on page 27 of your

statement to this committee, the statement that you h‘ave

——

I — T —— —— - ——

here, "The so-called 'var warning' dispatch,” towards the




